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In the natien's war housing epic Portland has played a leading role. It
stands today st the head of the list of all American cities that have pro-
duced publicly financed war housing for the emergency. In barely tia years
Portland has built the largest single war housing projset of the nation,
and two of its projects are numberad among the tem largest in existence.

The story of public war housing in this area is the story of the effort
to provide homes in the shortest space of time fdr a great army of war
workers., The orogram includes the building of 25 separate housing projects
of 19,139 dwelling and dormitory 'mits, all told, and an entire city to
shelter 40,000 war workers and their families, o

From the day the Housing Authority was created by the City Couneil,
and the commissioners appeinted, soon after the Pearl Harbor attack, publie
war housing hecame one of the crucial issues of the war =ffort. From that
day a determined home front army labored behind drafting boards and in tﬁa field
against many odds--the lack of matsrials, war restrictione, shortage ofi
skilled labor, priorities, snows, floods, strikes picket lines, and above all,
against time. Public war housing crappéd up on available vacant lots, on
oid fﬁrmlanés, and tracts inside and outside the city limits, It is daabtrﬁl
#hether a speedier housing construction record was ever made,

The reason for this relentless sttack on housing was that nearly over-
night Portlandvhad become a high pressure defense center. Ons shipyard,
Comﬁarci&l Iron, had launched its shipbuilding program with mavy contracts
as early as 1940, and ineidentally, with the first naval ship to be build

in the area sinee World War I. The Kaiser Corporation had opened their
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Oregon shipyard for the Maritime Commission in February of 1941; Willamette
Iron and 8teel began to turn out transports in the summer of 194l; and
Albine, in existence for AQ years, was also speedily geared for war pro-
duction. But lack of shelter for the workers of shipyards and allied plants
asriaﬁsly threatened production. For not only ahipyar&a, t approximately 75@
allied subsidiary industries classed ss easential to natiomal defense, made
enormous incresses in their personnel as the great shipbuilding program swung
into action. ?ertlamd heus1ng grew more critical with the opening of the |
Kaiser yards--Vancouver, in January, and 8wan Ialand, in March of 1942—and
the Gunderson yard in the summer of the same year. During this time the eyes
of ﬁhe nation were foéuxed on Portland and its war achievement.

On December 11, 1941, the Housing Authority of Portland, Oregon, was
ereated by thaAGity Council, and five commissioners were appointed, giving
to ?eftland the advantage of publiecly financed war hauéing to supplement
available privately owned homes, Its existence was made possible by the
United States Housing Act, of 1937; and subssquent legislation, and the
Orsgon Housing Laws, passed from 1937 to 1941, including the Oregon Defense
Hoﬁaing Law of 1941, The local Authority opsrates as an agency of the
Federal Public Housing Anthority, in turnm under the jurisdiction of the
National Housing Agency, at Washington, D.C. The Portland Authority has
retained only two of the eriginally am;ointad conmiseioners, Lost by
 resignation were Mrs. C, 3, Jackson, r&plaamd b7 C. B, Wegman, who in
turn was replaced by Harry T. Capell, and Chairmem C. M. Gertrell, whe
resigned on September i, 1944+ Vacanciss caused by resignation and b the
death of D, E. Nickerson, June 30, 1944, were filled by H, J. Detleff, and

Banford E. Norby. .



The curtain raiser on public housing was staged early in 1942 with a2 modest
civie coremony, in which !is.:mr Rﬂcy and Chairman Gartrell, of the Portland
Authority, turned the first earth for the Columbia Villa pra}wt-, The
enterprise, born of the war crisis, and launched that day vith scent nublie
attentlion, was to grow to s public housing procram involving an investaent F
‘close to #60,000,000, a staff of approximstely 1500 to keep it in oparation, -
and o develop new constructien ‘aa needed, and eventually reaching the
ymport&ms of & ety within a city, larger than ;alvmm » Texas, or
sprmgﬂam, Illinois, |

Prom 'July‘ 12, 1942, when the first sections of the Gartrell Hom:g were
opened %o tenants, wsek by week, and day by day, :iwslling units were Finished
for the newcomers who were clamorinz for zzhalter'., Culte !pxsa«ssibiy they were
"matting up,” mamhﬂa, in their cars, their trailers, in tents s 0ld shaoka,
and %mmimud stere rooms, hotel lebbies, and bagements, snd whole
fafailins wore living in one room. ¥any travelad from 20 to 50 miles to
work their shipyard shifts.

Sor ths_ 2@ projscts manazed and operat~d by the Housing Authority of
Portland, enly two, Colurbia Villa, of 40O dwelling units, snd Dekum Court,
kaf”u&ﬁ unita, are of permanent construction, The remaining public housing
ean mbamo 8lums on the fringes of Portland, as temporary prejects are
to ba dmlishoé at the end of the emergency, and will lesve no scarse !ﬂ our
- mmm hnéaeapam

| 4 The construation ahapter for the first 25 projects closed with ths com-
@Mtim of Fast Vanport and Fessenden Homes, begum in October, 1942, =nd com-
plem early in March, 19/4. At prasent the loesl futhority has 12,455 ﬂwslliag

/ uuﬂss under management. Of this total 110 are dormitery unitas.se

#% Placed in stand by status, November, 1944,
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HOUSING PRdJECTS OF THE PORTLAND HOUSIWG AUTHORITY

Columbie Villa

Columbia Villa, the only permanent* public h@ﬁaiug project in the Portland

area erected under the direction of the Eouéing Authority of Portland, has been
described by national housing officials as one of the most beautiful publie
housing groups in America. With its oountry lifé,»or suburban atmosphere, "it
hag been considered A»splendid example of public housing. Begun May 5,1942, as
& government-aided project, with the first funds ellocated by the United States
Housing Authority (U.S. Housing Aet of 1937) to the Portland Authority, and
opened in the same year, it became the prolqgue to the great public war housing
progrém'ef the following year. As it was their initial venture in housing, if
 also became the only projest built, owned, and operated by the Portlend Authority.

Columbia Villa consists of [;00 dwelling units, at North Columbia Boulevard
and Adriatic Avenue. The houses are a modificat’on of the Eastern Oregon ranche-
house style, with the second story ris;gg'betweeﬁ two one-story sections, and
arranged for small or large gimilibs. | |

In designing the group, Stanton and Johnston, Portland architects, insgﬁgi

upon spaeé between the groups, consistent with the best Portland tradition in |
hoﬁebuilding. Backed by the Authority, they finally succeeded in laying out a
project%fhat leads the coast region for low density of population. Five families
to the more is the standard. The buildings are set at wide intervals over the
elevated site that commands views of Mt. Hood, 8t. Halens,'and the sweep of the

Cascades.

* Dekum Court, of 85 dwelling units, and also of ‘permanent construction, was
built by the Public Buildings Administration to house non-commissioned officers
of the Portland Air Base. This project is menaged by the Housing Authority
of Portland.
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QOIWbi‘ Villa. PR

The buildings are arranged accoiding to a plan originated by the architects
in an out-spreading U-shape, with the flare to the street, and the narrow part
to the rear premisee for the sake of sightliness. All is well landscaped, with
the native trees conserved, and tﬁe individual homes enhaﬂéed by private plant-
ings of flowers and improved by Vietory gardens. The streets curve spaciously
about the wide open sections, intersperRed with parking areas and playgrounds.
The well appointed éammunity building, in its attractive setting, carries out the
country club idea.

Lease & Leigland, with an initial proposal of $1,312,000, built the 128
duplex and four-plex struotuicl of one, two, three, and four bedrooms, the come
munity building, and 10 laundries. The dwellings are unfurnished, except for
electric ranges, eiootrie refrigerators, gas wntcr.haatars, and gas circulating

heaters, The completion date for the entire project was June 15, 19}43..



Project ORE-35029

THE GARTRELL GROUP

The lot-lease, or Gartrell Plan of public m housing, ceased to be an
oxperimen:tb in the defense area of Portland, on July 12, 1942. At that time the
first units of a project 1nvolv1r;s 725 dwelling units on 52 scattered sites,
begun May 7, 1942, were i'eadj for ocoupancy, as the first war housing of the
metropolitan area to be opened. )

The lot-lease plan, propcsed to the Housing Authority of Portland by its
chairman, C. M, Gartrell, was regarded as a pzf;ctiqgl mqfsure that would éﬁko
advantage of vacant lots and turn a liability into a war housing asset. Nor
would the city pattern be disturbed, as in the oase of large, compact, and
looglized groups of war housiﬁg.

The plan was finally approved by the Federal Eéolio Housing Authority as
an i‘oxperinental pfo,ject, involving the 725 units ir; single and duplex types.
ﬁxfl project attraoted attention in national eirolgs . &nd won so much gpproﬁl
fran; the Federal Authority that the practice of leasing rather than ptn'o}using
sites for temporary war housing is now being followed by the FFHA wherever
possible, '’

Vacant ocity-owned lots, within a reasbmblo distance of the war plants,
and served by streets, water mains, and other utilities, many of them abandoned to
public ownership, hove been used, at a great saving to the Pederal Government,
Under the G4rtrell lot-legse program, 508 of these soattered lots have been ob-
§1ned for m=housi§;, t(n'd are being held under lease at a rental equal to the
going texes on the property. Thus, the oity can still sell these lots after the
emergency. Under the Gartrell plan leases may be torminated in six months after
the xlose of the war, or they may run five years, and may be renewed, Dwellings

will be salvaged only, and not as dwelling units, when the final disposition is

made.



. _artrell Groupu.. 2

As deii;gehod houses rither ﬁhan apartment types, these dwellings are ‘nét
furnished, but are equipped with individual coal space heaters, with electricity,
ges, or coal ranges for cooking. .

The building contracts, totaling a cost of $1,739,326.96, were placed with
- nearly 30 separate firms. The architects were Margaret Fritsch, Richard Sﬁndt-
leaf, Dougan & Heims, H*&m Brookman, R. D. Kennedy, and Wade Pipes. The

project was completed October 10, 19.2.
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THE GUILD'S LAKE GROUP

A panorama of ﬁho,@nnd'n Lake distriot would.ahow one of the major
housing developments controlled by the Portland H ousing Authority. It is
the second largest publie war housing project of the metropoliten area, to=-
taling 2606 dwelling units in eight projects, and was planned to shelter about
10,000 roddmta. It is known as one of ‘tho largest housing projects in
America, lying within the corporate limits of any city. It stands on 2,5 acres
of leased ground, and was developed at a cost of $5,783,359.,

Its scenie surroundings, below the west hills, and its extent have made
the Guild's lake project one of the most interesting of the Portland area. On
this historic site, mmmxiy LO years ago, the Lewis & Clark Fair of 1905 was
staged tq'oelabrs.to the Centennial of the Lewis & Clark Expedition to the
mouth of the Columbia River. 01d timers will remember the olassic white structures
and the lakes and nﬁomyi that once enhanced the ﬁita.

Guild's lake Court, to shelter 358 families, ns the first segment of the
development tq be finished, back in the pioneer days of war housing when, on
Cotober 22, 1942, eight families were moved into their new quarters. The single
family and duplex houses and the community building were designed by Morris H.
Whitehouse, Portland architect, and construoted Ly Ross B. Hammond.

A second oconstruction section, in the seven other projects, involving °
four-plex and six-plex row houses of 22,8 dwelling units, have made housing
history by the speed of oonstruotion. A period of 10 days only from the opening
of all bids, between Jmmr,} 15 and Pebruary L, 1643, to the breaking of ground



] was a new record for the entire housing program. The flying start was duorvto AN \t }
good weather and early priorities that were issued before the contract bids mo \\
lubnittoé, making it possible for the cmtractors to know in advance tho m‘iéﬂty. R \
rating of materials required. - “

AQ an expediting factor plywood pre-fabrication panels were extensively used.
Originated by the Portland Door Compeny, and never before used in this area, tho;t
Lo-inch penels o?;;ld be quickly put in plece, and were found to be much faster |
construotion than any previaueiy used. |

4Al1 of the no-bedroom units are rurniahed; and 60 per cent of the others,
which are of from one to four bedrooms. The furnishings include beds, chests of
drewers, davenos thu; open for the no=bedroom units, breaskfast table and chairs.

The kouns are heated by coal space burners, and cooking is done by coal in the
later sections and ﬁy eleotrieity in Guild's Lake Courts, with electric water
heaters and refrigerators as part of the equipment. -

Five community buildings serve the different sections. Five day centers for
children were also originally planned. Three centers, Guild's Street, Vaughn Street,
snd Gona Street, were transferred for operatim by the Portland Public Schools, -
and were opa:ied in Decemb@r, 19,3, as ‘grad'o schools for grades one, two, and three,
Playgodunds and sports areas are limited because of the sandy nature of the soil,
and congist in the main of small pla.ygroundi at the lronr ;Of the dwellings. These
projects are very accessible to the reoreation fuoilitiul of the city parke.

This housing was built for workers of 'dofonqo plants, prim\rng for the
Willamette Iron & Steel Company, and other industries holding navy contracts.
Architoeti\"’fg; the seven remaining projects were %:’;';S;';q & Tucker; Barrett & Logan,
and Earl Cash; Richard Sundeleaf and Herman Brookman; Sutton, Wiitney & Aandahl;
Morris H. Whitehouse; Jones & Marsh; Roald & Schneider; and John K. Dukehart,
Handling the construction were the contracting firms of Askevold & R\mﬂ Pacific
Construction; !rno-t"c. S8innett; K.T. Henderson; Gilmer & Halvorson; Lease &

Leigland; and Northwest Constructim, .



g

7 Guild's L‘k’"'.l5

%

Gonstruction was begun on May 1L, 1942, and the last project was completed

" December 27, 16L3.

Last



froject ORE=35051

UNIVERSITY HOMES

b

Opened August 17, 1942, University Homes, at 9009 North Foss, isidﬁe_btfi»' 
the major projects of Portland's war housing program. With 2005 dwalling‘uﬁi;s,
it ranks third in size. It éonsists of 218 apaftmant buildingl; 78 service and
l; maintenance buildings, one commercial and a large administration building, which
accommodates a spacious gymnasium or auditorium, a library, lounges, project
offices, a small hospit@l, and a cafeteria seating 250 persons.
Perhaps surpassing all public housing records anywhere was the construction
of the University Homes group. @raders moved upon the site one July day in 1942,
There were no streets, no lightiné,_and no other utilities nearer than the border
of the 105 farm acres. Trecs énd brush were to be cleared, the site levdlled, and
streets laid out; Yet in 38 days tenants were moved into the firet 72 units, which
were furnished and complete in every detail.
The furnished apartments are in one-room and two-room arrangements, in eight-
plex and sixteen-plex bulldings. Central heating and ice refrigeration are ine
_oluded in the utilities. |
This project is piaceiaa1ly gself-contained, with a Qoupleto food and variety
store, heauty pnrler,.ieo concessions, and all other necessities on the site. Dny
care for éhildren. a kindergarten, and recreation under a.residont director are
provided.
The one-story structures were designed by A. E. Doyle & Assooiates, and erected
by Ross B. Hammond, at a cost of $l;,730,000, The development covers an area of 105 acfes.v

Begun July 6, 1942, the final construction was finished November 28, 19L2.



Project ORE-3502L

8%. JOHNS WOODS

8t. Johnes Woods, consisting of‘967 dwelling units, is one of the larger
war housing projects, and the largest single-house project of the Portland
arca. More than 800 families were provided with separate dwellings at the peak
of the emergency. This group was among the earliest opened, the first families
being placed on December 15, 19L2.

- The individual gtructures, of one to four bedrooms, and the duplexes,
éumbering approximatelyIISO, are unfurnished, but coal ranges, eleotric refrig-
%iératora, electric water heaters, and circulating space heaters are included in
the equipment. | ‘

Kamed‘from the woodlands lying in different segments of the site, the S8t.
Johns Woods project is widol& soattered over a large area, wgth North Swift
Boulevard cutting through the project at an angle. A community building, at
8450 North Johnswood Court, with its various activities, including kindergarten
and recreation, fosters;a commmity spirit.

Rcsponsiblqﬁfbr the designs were Lawrence & Holford, Jones & Marsh, and
Roald & 8chneiéer. The homes were built by Wesco Construotion Company under an
initial contract of $3,220,000. Construction was begun June 8, 19&?, and

completed finally on October 10, 19L3.

wle
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Pfojeet QRE- 35025

PARKSIDE HOMES

"I’I:is project, at 10534 !or;bh Libya, very close to the Oregon shipyafd, was
opened December l, 1912, One-story buildings of single and duplex types provide
260 dwelligﬁxnits that are unfurnished exoept for eieotrio ranges, water heaters,
and refrig;rators, and coal=burning space heaters.

A community building, child care center, and two playgrounds not only provide

~_essential services, but keep the small community togethex.

_

/ .
/ The lay-out was designed by Johnson, Wallwork & Dukehart, and was built by
f _

Robertson, Hay & Wallsce, unc?er'an initial contract of $871,14,0. The project was

begun May 2, 1942, and finally completed on January 8, 19L3.

wid



Project ORE-3512),

FULTON HOYES

Fulton Court is of the same general locality es Slavin Court, -and serves
the seme defense plants, mainly the Commercial Iron & Stéel Works. It consists
of 32l; dwelling unitslgroups over many scattered sites. Many of the buildings are
close to the water-front, and othes lie on higher ground, a few homes groupéd to-
;eﬁher, or in larger sections as the sites permitted. Altogether there are 55 row
houses, arranged to accommodate f&ur to eight families, in units of one, two,and
‘three bedrooms, a community building, a child care oentef, and a maintenance builde
ing. They were designed by Pietro Belluschi, and were built by Tri-State Construetion,
at a cost of $616,399. | .

Of these dwelling units 60 percent are furnished. Heating is by coal-burning
space heaters, and cooking is also done with coal, Ilce refrigerators are includba in -
the equipment.

Though not a centralized project, the communify building at 3420 Southwest
Macadesm Street, and thg child care center, with accammodationé for 65 children, wirkbe
tendsto draw Fulton Court together into a community group. It was openedlséptember

1, 1943, Begun on May 3, 1943, it was completed Ootober 30, 1943.



Projacts ORE-25021
QRE~35027
ORE~35028
ORE-35061~-T
DEKG# COURT, HUDSON STRZET HOMTS,

FIR COURT, MOUNTAIN VIZW COURT

Dekum Court, at the Portland Air Base, comnsists of permanent houses for army
and navy enlisted men and eivilian parsonnel. The group of 85 dwe!ling units was
désign@d.bv Flo?d Naramore and Associates, and was built bv 8. H. Sheldon, at a
cost of %265,000. The unfurnished houses ars equipped with gas burning space heaters,
gags watsr heaters, anl electric r&nges and rafrigevrators. Puilt under the direction
of the Puvlic Buildings Aﬁminisﬁr%tian, the project was turned over to the Portland
housing authority br the FPHA, on Julv 15, 1942. It was opened to the first residents
on Jun= 15, 1942,

~ Hudson Street Homes, 9202 North Yestanna, is a vroject of 118 dwellin~ units.

It was built at a cost of #355,000, by Ward & Milvrandt, from the design of Herzog
. .

& Tucker. These unfurnishad houses are heated by cnal heaters, and eguipped with
electric rances, water heaters, and refrigerstors. ‘agun May 20, 19.7, thev were
completed March 1, 1943, and were readv for thes first occupants November 6, 19/2.

Fir Court, 9125 North Gilhert Place, in the s=awe neighborﬁood, iz ths smallest
of the publie war housing nrojéots of the Portland area.. Sheltering 72 fami ies,
it consists of temporarv construction, desimed bv Zarrett & Logam, and btuilt by
7ard & ¥ilhrandt, at a cost of %235,500. The houses are unfurnished ani are synipped
with coal heaters, elscirie ranges, watsr hanters, and refrigerators. SHerun May 20,
1942, ani complated March 1, 1943, thev ware opened to thz first tenants on
Dacenber 24, 1942.

Hountain Viow Court, A project of 100 trailer hous>s, was 3stabllshed for the

workers of the raduction olant of the Aluminum Corpany of Arerica, st Trouidale,
Oregon, at a cost of #166,138, It was Jiscontinued when Fairview Homss was opened,

June 2, 19/3.

w16
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FAIRVIEW HOMES

At the official opening of Fairview Ebmoa; Juno 2, 1943, four interested
communities took part -- Portland, troutdulc, Gresham, and Peirview, Aside from
its great service to the nearby communities, Fairview Homes has distinctive values of
~ its own that make it superior public housing. In a setting of great natural beauty,

over-looking the scenic Columbia River Valley, at Arata Road and Halsey 8treet, the

suburben project is one of the most attractive of the developments by the Eg;i'
Authority. B8tarted January 22, the project of 26l dwelling units was erected for
the employees of the reduction plant of the Aluminum Company of America, at a éost
of $696,860.

The buiidings, including a coﬁmunity building, were designed by F. Marion
Stokes, Bernard Heims, and L.L. Dougan, and built by the Tri-State Construction
- Company. The topography of the site made for an unusual treatment, and the sloping

contours give the development and informsl appearance. Curving strests are also
| 16 miles from Portland.

L]

an attractive variant for the hillside group of homes,

The 79 row houses for four and six!ﬂumiliea are heated by coal space heaters,
and equipped with white enamel ooal~bur;1ng ranges, and ice rofrigarators. Oregon~
made furniture is supplied for 60 per cent of the upartments with bedrooms, and for
all the no=bedroom typ§ |

A fuli recreati;n'program is provided, monthly health clinics, and limited

child oare,

The project was begun on January 22, 1943, and finished Sepetember 7, 19L3.

it



“oject ORE-35201

BELLAIRA COURT

The total development involvgs seven struetures, used as dormitories for the
¢ivilian personnel of the Portland Air Base, and includes four dormitories of 110
units, two service buildings, and & ocommunity building, to accommodate 66 men and
Ll women. The design was b& Lawrence & Allyn, local architects, and the construc~
tion, under standard FPHA specifications, was by Knott, Rogerg & Dunbar, at a total
cost of $9l,9L0. |

The buildings are spaced around an irrégular quadrangle, end so arranged that
each two dormitories are serviced by a utility annex, which contains a lounge, all
toilet facilities, including showers, and a coal=burning furnace.

The community building prévides administration and meintenance quarters, a
safeteria seating 125 persons, and social lounges for general community purposes.

The plan was designed to conserve five clusters of trees on the site, both
for appearance and aéﬁeealment, and in eccordence with the policy that avoids
destroying trees on e federal reservation, The construction ras begun on March
. 25, 19L3, opened September 27, and finally completed, September 22, 1943. The
project was placed in stand-by stetus on Novewber 1, 194, t§ bé pfogrammed again

iater in case of need.

A../Ig



Projects ORE-35202
ORE-35282
ORE-35279

POYRRS DORUITORY
AST VANPORT
FRASENDEN COURTS

Powers Dormitory, is a convartad structure to accommodate 492 single men,

as a receptlion center, at 123 N, ®. Third Avenue. Plans were vrepared by Glenn
Stanton and Hollis Johnston for the conversion by the installation of partitions
and faecilities, at a cost of 2455,764. The dormitory was deprograeod Jamuary 1,

1944« The conversion began April 20, 1943, and was completed Saptember 4, 19/3.

Fast Vanport, was originally designed to provide 842 dwellings, but later

reduced to 484, rose on the site of the old Penisula Golf Course, across the high-
way from Vanport City. A duplex on tha site nrovidsed two more uwnits,

Specifications ealled for on=-storv row housss o” four and seight units to a
mailding, and of two and three hedrooms to a nﬁit. Thev are furnished, and
aquipped with coal space heaters, coal ranges, and lce refrigerators.

A compmunity building and a2 cowmercial center complete the civie plan, with
full advantage taken of the scenic setting, the rolling cﬁntnurs of theiolﬁ groens
the landscaping, and the native groﬁths. The -~uhlic tuiliings are so nlaced that
the streets radiste fan-wise from this point throush ths dwslling aress. Though the
complation date was set for April 1, 1944, the first tenant was ndmitted to this
project on Februarv 24, 19.4. BExclusive of a swall fire houses, tho cost of this
project was 2626,175. The de=sign was b7 Stanton & Johnston; the comsiruction by
Wegman & Son.

Fsggenden Courts. A small segment of the last group of dwelling‘units allocated

to the Portland ares iz knowm as ?qqaanden Courts, =t North Faszsenden nenr North
“all., It consists of 152 dwelling units and a community building dssigned by Jonos
& Marsh, and built br ‘Tegman & Son, at a cost of 2375,700. It was opensd Jamaary 31,
1944

w/9
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VANPORT CITY

Vanport City was the wost inspiring construction feat of the entirve
~public housing program. Built te shelter 40,000 people, it literally
sprang to lifs fullegrown from the grass roots of the Columbia River
lowlands. There was nothing like it in Aunerica—nor anywhere in the werld.
The crucisl purpose of the commmity, its dramatic birth in the exeiting uﬁrly
days of the Second World War, the tense speed of its construction, and
Cits great size make Vanport City unique.
Of the 25 separate war housing projects, totalling 19,189
dwelling and dormitory uﬁits, to come under the comtrol of the Portland
Authority, and invelving an investment of close to $60,000,000, Vanpori
City is the most spectacular and the @ase imorobable. HNot in any peried
of American history, or its building anmnals, do we fimd the Faderal Governe
ment or any private agency producing an entire eity of this extemt, inecluding
public builﬁings; a water system, and all other utilities. a
Distinguished Americans and foreign visitors alike are impressed
by the size and completeness of the '"Wiracle City,? as it is frequently
called, With its own shops, school system, child care centers, church
and welfare organizations, fire and police departments, a public libiary,
theater, hospital, a great r@c?emtian program in a number of centers,
and the civie luxury of éverhead aut@gar lighting, peved strsets, and land-
scaping, this se;fuéentainoé community wili long remain one of the marvsls

of the war effort,.

w2V



Ground wag broken fdr Vanport City on September 14, 1942. The firat
rent receipt issued was dated December 12, 1942, Thus in the byief 9paaav
of 90 days Vanport City had appeared on the map of Oregon, to become the
. aacond eity in population of thé state, the fifth of the Northwest, the
‘ ﬁatien's largest single public war housing projsct, and the largeat mass
housing experiment of all time, As it was rushed to eamﬁletian, at the
peak of constructien, more than 5,000 persons were employed, of whom 650
were women,

The townsite covers about 647 acres of reclaimed land bordering Denver
Avenue, in the northwest aaﬁner of the'motropolitﬁn'area, and south of the
Columbia River. Winding waterways, fringed with native trces, a natural
shallow lake within the baﬂnd;riea, and scenic hills and snow peaks in the
background give interest to the setting., The site was selected hecause of
its convenient proximity to the three Kalser shipyarda--8wan Island, Oregaﬁ,
and Vancouver, Lying mid-way betweoen Portland, Oregon and ?andauver,
‘washington, the new community became officially Vanport City.

The war eity can never beeome a ghnst‘toun nor a mangtsrAulun. Under

the Lanham Act administration, unless another provision is made, it will
be demolished or removed, and truck gardens again may floutrish where the

26-million~dollar city once atood.

Since the city could have no gradual expansion, =8 ﬁoah American cities
know in their efalntién from a ssttlement or a village, the sudden briﬁgiﬂg
together of thousands of exiled workers frumIQVtry part of Americs, ﬂproofed
from their homes, under constantly changing conditions, resulted in problems
of management, maintenance, and'oyeratian.probably found in no other community
of the land. The synthetic character of the city, its temporary span of life,
and its experimental social features, make the welding of a community spirit
more diffiocult than in normal cities that have developed their own institutions
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and socisl 1ife as they have grown. The problem is to retain the population

‘ami eliminate costly moving about, both for its own sake and that of the war effert.
In the complet 2bsence of an indigencus and attractive mitytli!‘a,

#rmngmm%s for an acceptable social scale of living had to be ereated more

or less artificislly. | |
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Comstruction

Planned and begun by the United Statas Maritime Commisszion and the

Kaisor Garpora%ian,beﬁanaa Lanham Act funds were not at the tims av&ii&ble,

tha ¥anpart City project was eventually turned over o the Federal Public
Housing Authority, On hugust 1, 1942, Edgar F, Faiser, 5¢u.¢£ the Portland
shipbuilder, entered into the consiruction contract with the FPHA, as prime
_eontractor, with %wo local building firms as sub-contrectors. Maintensnce,
aperat&an, and completion were delegzated to the Portland Haaaing Autherity
on Gatabar 15, 1942, '

Albert A, Pierson, chief project engineer for the Fedsral Publie Housing
Authority, was placed in direct control of all construction. Tha buildings
and aﬁilities were deaignad by Gaorge M. Wolff and Truaan Ee ?hilliyﬁ; Portland
architects, lang ‘engaged in the designing of publie buildings for the Northwest.
They also planned the landscaping of tha townsite in conjunetion with land-
scapa architects and engin@ers;

The George H. Buckler Company was responsible for 371 apartmemt buildings
~and all utilities, such as the water supply, sewer system, slectrie distribu-
tion, streets, parking lots, and landscaping. The second contractor, Wegmen 8
Son, araetéd 349 apartment building and all the special public and serviced
buildings, The Denver Avenue underpasa, which connects the osmrmunity with the
outside world, and the west end access roads wers planned by the Oregom State
Kighw@y Commission, The underpass was built by the Ka1§er Compeny, and the
access roads by the George H. Buckler Company.

The Buildines

Vanport City originally consisted nf 703 two-story, "Type A" and 8

"Type B" apartment bulldings, identical in plan, and designed for 14 or 8

w23



apartments to esch building, and 9 smaller, multiple-unit "Type C" ome-story
a%rnckurcs, totaling 9,942%* dwelling units, with 183 service uaaexan, and 50
| specinl p&bl&a and service building.

The doaignatod buildings to eare for the aaa£u1, aivic, aa& service
noéﬂ;ﬂazwtkn community include an administration building, a United States
p@at‘efrieo, six grade schools, four nursery scheols, one gentral fire
station, two fire substations, a cafeteris, seating 400 persons, a theater,
with & capacity of 785 persons, two large and five smaller commumity buildings,

a Red ﬁ?ﬁss building, a library, an infirmary of 136 heds, a pelice station, and

five commercial centers, containing food markets, aoparel and other shops,
drag stores, beauty é&rlara, snd lunch e@unters;'alaa, a wars house, mainte-
nance buildings, and ice houses. Fifteen playgrounds and sports areas,
among the largest of the Portland district, complete the ecivie plan,

#  Reduced to 701 : T » Hlla
‘totally destroyad; one 8alvagad and ram@deleﬂ fer Red crcss bﬂildw
ing, but still containing & rentable apartments. (Red Cross Build-
ing, opened March 30, 1944)

#**  Reduced to 9,916 apartments by fire.
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Dwelling Strue
~ Thrse types of apartment buildings have been used, and are identified
ag types Ay By and C, All are of frame construction, with bevelled siding

S

and waterproof vemém: on the exterior, and compositign reofing over solid
wood sheathing on the roof, o | |

Interior walls are all covered with pre-finished, blesched mahogany
plaster bosrd .of three~eighth-inch thickness. Ga;liuga a‘z*vn“ eoversd with
three-eighth~inch fibre, applied over lx4 wood aﬁrﬁm&i&g; Bé‘hhman walls
and cellings are covered with m&fmth»in&h water-proof veneer., Soft
wood floors are finished with a light varnish. The A Type apartment
tuildings are two-story atrﬁetxxrcs of 14 family dwelling units, These
‘unita are one-bedroom apartments, but are p&mned g0 that they may be
used as two-bedroom ar'na«bedmai, units to ﬁemb the ﬁamnd.}‘

‘The B Type apartment buildings are also two stories in h@ight, and |
are divided into eight dwelling units of one-bedroom and three-bedroem
- apartments, which may be sltersd to serve as one-, twe-, :nd three-
bedroom units.

The C Type apertment buildings are one-story structures with four
dwelling uni @ rhiah will serve as oiﬁhor one~, two-, or three- bedroom
onits, |

The A and B Types are constructed in groups of four with a service
annex for each group. The annex contains the laundry room extra baths,
hot water t;;gk), and the coal-fired furnace, fed by sutomatic stokers,
~ and sug;ﬁlying heat by a forced warm air system,

?ﬁa ﬁpa?’mmt suites have caused mueh favorable comment bscsuse of

compact arrangement, inviting appearance, and built-ins that make for

w



sffieient and reasonably eamférmbla living. The furnishings are plain,
but meet all the requirements of temporary homes. Fach apartment in-
dudes a 1living room with kitchen counter, fitted with an eleciric rangette
and oven, ice refrigerator, a dinette table, chairs, am occasicnal -
chair, and a da#em-%hata opens to make a double bed in the main room. The
bath i8 equippsd with shower and standard ware. The bedroom is provided
with a bed, blankets, and a chest of drawersj but ne dishes, linens, or
gilver are furnished.



VANPORT GITY

It was n%mmw to 4*@?16@ for Vannort City, lymg outaide the jurisdietion of
Portland Zchool Disirict '%c. 1, » separate school system, whiwh wns to become the nation's
largesst sehool wit.hin & publie housing project, and of itself = uni ue im%itatm.
Traditionnl sducational methods wers modified in order to assume s total mmaihility
for the ehild during the workimg day, whenever both parents wers mminx, through aa
Wndaﬁ service program which earrisd past the rm:mlur s#ehoal session,

The Vanvort Gity achool was originally cparated by Columbia Sehool Distriet He. 33,

‘ «‘Sﬁf ¥altnomsh County, but is no- & sepurate smtity knewn as Yanport Cit*sz Diatrict No. 33.
The administration maiﬁta of ity mparinmdmts, assistant superi ntmﬁm!i.a, and a
~ tesching and Musiness staff of upproximately 300 persons. It began its existence in
¥Mareh, 1943, in seversl a;&rtmmu, with practically no mgular class-room mimt.
| The Federsl Government, under deficit finaneing, provided ten wodern buildings fer
the chiliren of the community: six elementary tuildince in twe mein esnters, and foup
nursery school bulldings at convenient loéﬁﬁions about the elty. Each @Iméﬁtary tuilding
his qu&‘rtarﬁ for a kindergerten for Mive-year-old children, giving facilities for nursery
school, kindergarten, snd elamentary adue:tionm. High schosl studente ara sent to Portland
high schools at district expense, |
The school system offeré, in sddition to the usual eduestion sresedure, health superw
vision, _;;{unﬁsr the direction of the publiec health deparimant, hot weuls in modern scheol
eafetering, clanned by competent diotlciags, fres text books, and sxtended msrvice for the
hours added te the regular class-room nerlods, Reere: ﬁion, hobh Areups, aports, games,
and other *malth and character-building activities give variety %o the extendsd service
pregram. Vanport schools neocsscarily repain in session during the sumver, with the

esmphasis placed om recreation of the sport flelds and play -ress, and speeisl m:tivitjiet, ‘
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such as arts, hazﬁimmfﬁa,. smsic A am:! h@ma‘-«making‘

| The ohild ears wmgmm srew out of a simtien in whieh the e:hilri hm‘i been aimrivsé
of a matural houe @pﬁmﬂs&mt br the esployment of both awmts, or by a parent ebliged

to sleep during the ﬁay. The servies is M.Mfiami, with ﬂirmt@d g as, mﬁmr mﬂ mtn
door :».zlw pericds, lunches, singing, rest hours, and health abaamtim &imcw b ahild
amaia}.ist,a. Play and other aquimmt is i.n miniaturs to meet the lwelu of ehildrem from
twe to five ysars ald. | '

The rublic health msfi hyzliene pmgmga of the project, conducted by the ?@%ﬁim& and
Kultnomah County departments of "aeaval?:h, provide public health clinies, ndminister First |
nid, earry on asim:atieﬁxi services, and provide f&r bedside pursing, as of any other normal
comuunity, | | ‘ |

~Seven comsunity or seeial bulldings, including two rajor centers, and 15 spert fislds
and play srems invite comsunity life and nrovide for commnity sotivities. The main
buildings are equip-ed with m@deﬁ racreation and sports apparatus, snd are available for
ths use éf the ymg and the old. At one time a miléing wag sel aside for the exelusive
use af hiah school a%ﬁmh, and provided study rooms for their eammxmm, m& ons was
maintsined for ahildm from thres to fourteen years. »

An organized recrestion orogram operstes in these f‘wilit;ea on a wsrwéo&né bapis, ,
#ith indopr and outdsor activities supervised formerly by mérmtim lsmm under the
dirsetion of the Huniciml Racreation divisien of the Portland Buresu of Parks, im

aup«smt" on with the Project Services Denartment of the Housing Authority. In Jamusry,
194 5, the Vonport City Recrention Association, l:na. » & non~profit erganization, was
formed by & gmsa of men an! women reaiﬁmﬁa of Vanport City or identified with the atu'.y
to supervise the racreastion program. |

Becsuse the progran has baen adupta& to industrial shii‘ts, :it. was often contimuously
mhimd thmgh the twenty-four hours, It ombraces orzanized sports, athleties, socls}
affairs, tit-h xzmaing, pames, and thcatrimla; am clessas in & wide range of subjects,

such =8 arts snd erafta, home nursing, nutriuan, drama, and masie, and juvenile recrene
tien and w“vitie: in ehamemr lmiltiim through clubs and vouth erganiuumc.



A separate library uilding has been -rovided, said te he the only 1ibrery bullding
in a public war housing project in the United States, It is operated and maixﬂaimné_
by the Portland Publie Library, which slso dis® ributes books for children through
ﬁ'mp&rz Sehool libraries,

Phen t&m influx of war mrkuw hegan to res ~h ?armaa the eharehes of the eity
started a plan for t!u rumgxima needs of the mﬁaiplm hw:ing populsation. They approach-
ed the problem through ?mtwtmt, Catholie, and Jeawish argmimm The work of ﬂw
Protestant group, intar—dmm:m%iml 1:3 elmmtztm', ?ma b&m eatmimm ‘usmgh m
United Gm&a Kinintry, of the Cathollc group, through the ﬁa%ui&e Gmitm, and of
the Jewish gsroup, through the Jewish Couneil, A staff of resident ministers and field
secretaries have charge of ﬂm‘ program =t Vanport City, and in the absence of church
?miidmga on the projsct, community m&ldings have served. The shurch progras, im}nﬁmg |
#4ble snd Sunday schouls, yvoung people's mestin:s, snd chelr work, has probably called out
the greatest community %rtiaipautm, next to zensral recreption.,

Prominent welfare orornizations are active at Vanport City, though their prograse are
also available in Portland. To name but a fow, they inelude the eity, county, and state
“opartments of Publie Hsalth, Comail of Social Agma‘im, Juvenile Cmt, United Church
Hinistry, American Red Cross, Office of Civilian Defense, Child Guidance Clinie, U. &, Q.
Federation of cmm&ty Clubs end Coumeils, B:tionsl Youth Agencies (Boy Seouts, Gird
Scouts, Campfire Girls, 4 Clubs, {. K. Co A4y Y. Wa Cohs, Cotholic Youth Or-ani:ntiom),
State Vocational ¥ducation Departuent, County A:;ricultural gximsm 0ffice, and Vietory
Garden Cormittees. | |

#hile not all of thaém orzanizations are sirietly welfsrs in their rurpesa, thaif

fields merge with other activities for the betterment of comrumity living,
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- It hag heen &;_& desire and ths responsibilily of the %ﬂl‘mm. Housing Authority
to wémﬁ and mmgm its wnr %gmairzg projects in sueh & manner se will insure the
- eonfort, smf‘aw, health, and morale of the war workers and their %mﬂiw, i?;ww%d '
Azericans m the Blue Ridgs snd the Ozarks to the Blerras, and ths *sla:ims hatwaon,
from the ﬂm;m ’Kay& Lo Pupet Sound, have forsad a population exposed Yo new condi-

ﬁimﬁ s DAW wlimtas, and new work., %ot vet intezratsd into gtrange eommyni ty,

the w: zrants h@w alm bean sxpossd to loneliness, homesiciness, and disgouresssent, \
acgording to m'fmmm They have presentad many problems and not m" physical hwaim:
‘alme !m mila and a roof wers not enough. Hush more was essential to ksen
@mmlv mm mﬂy on an oven keel. m futhority &’ém vta moat its

angﬁmgiﬁ ‘tha wider interpretation of hmﬂiﬂg by making avaeilable to ths war
varkm/&a wamwy comeuni ty services in the Tislde of haalth, recraation, educztion,
mlfary{, and mmla.
Min; pm}mt cmstm&tim, or elaanly following, as the nueds became apparent,
mmftg fmiutiw ware pmxaaa. An houses were required for the men and womem
of thg =§1‘m&§1¢ﬁ forces, #o were schools and nurseries for their childrenm, and soelal
mt&a far lelsure-tine mtivitian and meeting places for clubs and church orgaiizsilions.
Shopping arrangssents for food and alathmg ,ﬁmi ~ther family msplioa were ivperative
in mrmin of the more ramoilas pmjmta, and thester, library, and anfe privﬁuges desirable,
To Mag faellitier, crograms, and tenants together reguired an expsneien of mensge~
nent hy a special dspartment dealing ohiefly with community mﬁiﬁﬁm and m&v&wa for
war mrkm m their familiss, It is called the Froject Jervices Depnrivent, and e
in ahsm@&:ﬁf a dim-m who acts as prublic relations medium and as technical adviser te
the mmgmmt in affaira goncerned with hia depsrtzent. Many crojects have their om
.hat MM &Mma, who act ss ecordinators for the wairious muni%y setivities,
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in»ﬁﬁs fiolds of sducation, p&%&iﬂ health, reerestion, welfare, sand religiom, and whe
correlate the work of the vurious rublic and ?rivata ﬁgmneiai, and bring thelr orograms

%# the attention of the residents. Dealing with the human side of the eiuation they are
also accountable for partieipation of tha sreject residents in all the soelal and comwyality
Living @&mvidad.  The attenpt héa ﬁoeu rimarily to stisulate projeet residents to generate
their own commonity netivities and aﬁeiﬁl‘a??aira,‘and to assume leadership ﬁﬁa@ema;hiliqr
Tor thempelves and the maor peoples

8inne no eummnhity romming atatle the daily scene is dymemle. The purpose hes boem
to kadp tha~uyyraadh %o the commmity and its problems through Project Services Tlexible
and ready to mest the changing demands, Community services in general, however, revain
“airly constant, having grown out af norzal compounity living. The war @izronts, wherever
poanible, have waen dirscted inte wstablished -rograws of the w@%ravélit&a ares, such ns
the Yfa; Boy and &iri seouts, runicipal r@er@ati§n, and churah Qrganiﬁﬁtiwmm, though it
may have callsd for expension of thess in certuin dirsctions, In other a&a@ﬁ;aﬁﬁra B R
Jansion wss not fenelible, widitional serviess have "eson agiahlighed, us in the n%w sehool
distriet for Vanport City, which grev in ninety days froc 2 distriet of ons @mll schoel
tuilding %o ona of five large slementery schoole, wit& an attendance, ineluding kinlerysrten
sni margery achools, of ’elom to 5000 children,

To keep an imwsdlite contact with the rasilents in wany projects. neighdorhesd comncils,
or tenunt councilsg, have bean ars@§ad {o helc golve comuunilty -robless and to make
plaasunter living conditions. Himeosraphed tulletina ars weskly “eqtursa in many rrojocts
ﬁa kaﬁp the roaldents in touch =ith the rogram of svents,

Projest Services
Zdua:tl

In the majority of projsots education does not bagoma < separate mervice since the
children atiend the mblie schocls of Portland, and in many orojscts child eirs is slso

undar the Juriadiction of School Diastrict No. 1. Vanvort City, lying ocutside this district
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iw;* amm an sxce tion, witn vae nation's argmt school sysﬁm within s zublic war housing
m;&m@, and of itsel? a unigue institution. Traditional edusatlonal methods snd routines
“%?m,';,; this community haves heen abgndonad to mest the needs of nearly 5000 war-isolated
w&ii:ﬁm.. The school rrogram is Mullt around the ides of a total regoenaibility for the
ahiiei dtsring the mrki.ﬁg dsy m%hsr than the old-atyle schedule of a partial oversight,
xm ene or both pavents m&inad in the hm.

The ‘?gnpm*t school wap wigiml&y operated by Columbia School Ddsiriet Re. 33, of
#ultoomah County, but :&s now & sophrate mhitg %nown ns Vanport Clty District Ne. 33.

The administration consists of superintendent, angiﬂmt superintendents, and a teachimg
and business #&ft of approximatsly 300 Wvﬁmiu.

The Vanport schools began their sxistence in Marsh, 1943, in Jsveral apartzents, with
practically no regular class-roos ejuirment, Eventually they ware organized to meet
problens, which in many ways were peculinr to the somunity.

Speeifically, a large musber of children were concentrated in a mlz. area, and with-
out the wflumm ai‘ stable family and mity 1ifs. The achoole had to take on pagy
of the W#‘ nﬁmny of the howve and comsunity by previ&ing faaci, health, ﬁmtm,
rest, snd frim}.y sscurity for the child.

ﬂaﬂ 6!‘ ﬁw« @Miﬁm of werking perents had to be given for a%imat ten and em-hm
hours cmg' tia:f of the week mtﬁl tha shxmms changed to » six-day week, and many hove-
sentered Mﬁﬁmm, and those of childrents :roups apart from the mhml, weore awmd.

' Both day and. nmt care for pre-achool children had to be &r*&ngcd in the ohild service
wt&m fm* miiﬁm of working or alquing. parant. Inadecuate play srees during the
raiey %mihsf ﬁalm’- w the schools to zdve greater @m&ifm %o indoor reere=tion.

vmm :p&hm&g mmgm to meet these problems with sehool facilities, that were

nb Pirat 'ﬂ a.‘bam 50 wnw% géwaah. Apmxiumlv 4000 ehildren were in &ail,y

! /'i !’ i

atuwimv aﬁn m mm schools, u:lth facilities for ml:f 2W/OC 8% o tiae, m&m

a Wr W ‘» neorssity.



Tha ?&ﬁer#x Govarnment, under defieit financing, h&a>3romiéad nodarn ildings for the
ghildren of Vanport Citv. Though terporary in purpose, they have been fully equipped and
stalfed to offar a modern program of education.

Four nn?xary aﬁhaal‘%uﬁiﬁiags and ﬁiéa alementar- huildines in twe sain centers ware
originally provided. ?ha‘m&m%h aslementary building was opensd early iﬁ 1945, fLsch |
elonantary huil&%ng ﬁaa susrtara for a kinﬁsrg&r@m& for Tive-psurecld chiliren, clving
the war commnlty facilitlss fer muraéry ﬁéhﬂﬁl; kinderparten, and! eleventary aluestion.
High achocl mtudents ars gent to Portland high schoolm at disirict expenasae,

Sehool aérvie&a, in addition te the usaal sdusation prodecure, inelude heélxh,saparu
viglon under the dirsctien of the mublic health departzent, hot reals in modern school
eafeteriag, =lanned by ae@p@%ﬂ&# ﬁimtiaﬂans, froe text books, and sxtendsd servies, for
the hours dded té the normal schosl ssasion. FReerantlion, hobdy groups, ayarﬁ#, gamod,
st other haalih and character @raﬁating rotivitios give varlety to the extendsd service
cregram. Vanport schools neessanrily remain in seseion Auring the sumuer, with the
smphasis placed om recrention of the sports fislis, specisl setivitlas, such nm ﬁgﬁiﬁ,
arts, handicrafts, and home-making, and on fundanental sehool subjecta. |
Child Care Zervias

The ehild esrs program graw cutb of n situation in which the ehlld hes been deprived
of m,nazurél home snvironment by the ewployment of hoth parents, or a paremt ehlised to
slesp during the day. The sarvies ls standard, wi&& directed games, indoor anl out-doop
«lav periols, lunches, singing, =nd paat hours under ehild specialists. Eaaltﬁ obeervation
is slso included, Fseilities ars ﬁn a&nmtu?e to mest the lavels of children frew iwe

to fiva vears 01&,'thaugh enTY may’ﬁa axtendal in aithar ace direction o m@at exisbing
| deuands, | | v

The sarvice euaaiata of a program in which every chlld is considered inéiwiéually,

Tor his best physical, montsl, emotional, an! socisl igvelopments The nursery nhhagl

wag not meant to saﬁglmnt the home, but rather fo supplemant it, in chil? developments
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Child eare centers, ammr&ta& b? the ?an§ait~aehaal system, are aa&&biighaé at ?ﬁﬁ%@?&v
v tit@; with four buildings, each ith a a&p&aitw of 160 ehil&raﬁ, also at Universlity Hemaa,
Falton Homes, and Guild's Lake, operated hV'sehaax Disirict Ho. 1. ﬁna VYanporty centaey
providss a twenty-four hour sarvﬁaa, snd the eare cf a registered rurss during -leeping
hours. Limited ohild gare is provided at other projeets, #here the need is apperenta
el . v
The heslth and gxgiuasvgwagrama of the projects are ﬁn&ar aanﬁrgz of the P%r%laﬁﬁ
and ¥ultnewah County department of Publie Health, which asnﬁﬁ@g publie health elinics,
administer firast ald, earry on sduestional serviges, and orovide for b@daiéa oursing, s8
a” sny othar normal eommmity. '3@rvﬂca ia 67%erad in the fialdn of eowruniceble dlseane,
tuberculosis, and veneral diseass control, immunization, maternity rursing, infent and
preugehaﬁl hyziene, school and adult hygiene, morbidity, erippled ehildren, and ramaral
ssnitation, |
'vmn@@rt Gity has 1ts own Infirmarr in aidition to the public heslth servies. In
othsr projects the health service is offered in clinies, usually held in £ha adpinistrstion
mildines, an&‘h; dirsct menns., The Vanport City Infirmary is bullt in two wimgs, 400
'faet in lmngth, with s comnecting cross section, about a landseaped sourt, The airaeﬁur@
provides apace for 136 el in the maﬁigai, maternity, children's, and isglaﬁiaﬁ waris,
with service rooms, diet kitchens, offices, lahdratariua, and a surzery te socommodate
an adequate sta”™ of doctors, wuraes, and attendants., Aside frox the publie henlth section

it i privately cperated,

An organized recrastion @rcgraa gparatas on a~yﬁar~raund.§a$ia, with indoor sn’ oxtdooy
gragwama suparvised by racrastion lsaders under the dirsction of the recrsntien divialon
af the ?ar%laa& Bureau of *ﬁr&a, in cooperation with the Projeet Serviess departzent of
the Housing Aut&uf&ﬁg, axoapt at Yanport City, shich has its recrsition progravs administered
tw 3 loeal sroup known as the Vanport Clty Recrastlion Asnociation, Inc,. Secsuse it was
adapted to industrial shifte for certain vrof--ts, the progrsm st Uines wms naarly ocontinouse

ly sustained through a twenty-four howr pariod.
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In 12 sg:aaiﬂl comrunity buildings M‘ %rsmrﬁ City, Hsst Venpors, Guild's Lave,
Parkside Homas, University Homes, Columbia Villa, ft. 7 ohng Woodg, Fairview Homes, snd
Slavin t’}mams {(Pulteon #8. m%}, and in nearby aports and nlav aress, tha orogras is qmmwﬁ
ons  Heeting and gocial rooms mre srovided ut Py Court, Hudsen Street wa, Bollairs |
Cours, and ?eaammm Homzs, Dekum Court hes nceess to Air Buwe recreation, and other
ﬁmjmm hmm ﬂm/ aﬁwnhg&s of sdjacent eity rurke, or ether sowruni tr Taeilitien,

?m;}vmt m:uiiaga are squipped with sedern reersstion and w;;serm anparatus, snd are
avallable for the use of ym and olde The progran ssbraces organiszed sports, amlauu,
muial affoirs, with ‘aneing, rames, amﬁ thentricaln; alse classes in a wide rangs of

Am&gmm, me"* a8 arts and erafts, home nursing, nutrition, drasa, snd vusie, and
juvmrxil@ roera tion and ﬁhar’mmwtxﬁm%mg seltiviten activities through clubs and wel-
fave organtzntlonge

Tha Portlond Publie Library amvmaa book gervice in eommunity ~aildings, wm@t in
?%nmrt f“‘:!t*r zhers ¢ separate Muilding hes hesn gamvi&ad, the only librsry tuilding in
a mablie war msimg meoject in tfm Unitad States. The Porilsnd Library alse distributes

childrem's books %bmgﬁz the ?am m't schoolsa,

Venport City has seven cossunity or soeial 'Mldinggs, ineluding one =ajor bullding
conteining lounges, zeeting, club, snd zame rooms, kitchens, lockers, and a apacious
&m&sim; #ith stege and esollegiate floor, that wug considered one of the :oaat sonplate
faeilities in the M@rtbmgt.b A second commmity boilding s .ecmwmetm on the sare rclan
ut to a smaller scale. Numbered among recre-ilon faatures are 15 sport flelds and ~lay
Broag,

Gmrches _

Fhen the influx of war workers bagan to reach Portlsnd the churches of the city started
2 plen for tha religious neads of the antieipated housing vopulation. They agread to
approach the oroblem through Protestant, Cathollic, and Jewlsh organizstions, The w&rk
of the Protastant rroup, inter—lenominational in character, was coordinated through the

United Ohurch Ministry, of the Catholie group, through the Catholie mtm, and of the



